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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND O'.RIGINAL {(IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Cranberry Villagr was established in the colonial period and
functioned as a stage stop alcong the Ph' ladelphia - Amboy (New York
Harbor) route. A real estate advertisement in 1775 describes a 400
acre property ®situate in the town of Cranberry, in the county of
Middlesex, acdjoining the stagerocad leading to Ambcy ferry...” {iew
york Journal 1/5/1775.) -

Another property advertisement for Cranberry in the Pennsyl-
vocnia Gazette in 1775 discusses advantages of the house in sgecific,
tut is applicable to the town in general - "land at Cranberry...
wnich is situated along the public road, about the center between
this city (NY) and Philadelphia. It is a good stand for trade, a
store having been kept there many years with advantage, which is
likely to increase by the establishment of a weekly stage through
Crankerryv." (Pennsylvania Gazette, 1/4/1775.)

The Cranberry Mills, erected by Thomas Grubbs about 1737,
c:tabhliched the nucleus of the village. Up for sale in 1777 the
r:ll is described as being "on a good stream, within twelve miles of
woter carraige to New York, and fifteen to Philadelphia, is an
vxcellent stand for county work, well situated, and in gouod order
for mérchants work, having two pair of stones, one pair which is

.«:—ry good for making flour... The lot...consists of about three
cres and a half of the best meadow in the county, on which are
erected, besides the mills, a comfortable dwelling home, convenient
thop for a cooper, and a still and a malt house which are not quite
finished.® (Pennsylvania Evening Post, 8/23/1777.) The mill was
destroyed by fire in 1860, rebuilt, and subsequently destroyed
écain. The site of the mill is on the west side of Main Street,
couth of Cranbury Brook, within the Firehouse property and Memorial
Park.

The village developed around the mills and as late as 1810
cornitained only 18 houses.

The major development of Cranberuwy was during the second and
third gquarters of the 19th century in the Jacksonian period.

Gordon's Gazetteer indicates that in the 1830's Cranbcrry. was

"on the turnpike road leading from Bordentown to South Ampoy,
cixteen miles from the former, 185 miles from W.C. (Washington City,
and 15 miles from Trenton; pleasantly situated in a level county,
and light sandy soil; contains a Presbyterian church with cupola and
tell, an academy, a grist mill, two tanneries, three taverns, two
stores, and from 60 to 80 dwellings. Cranberry brook, tributary of
the Millstone river, flows through the town.” (Gordon, Gazetteer of
the State of New Jersey. 1834, p. 124)
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+TEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Cranbury is the best preserved 19th century village in Middle-
sex County. 1Its collection of fine frame buildings ranging from the
late 18th century to the early 20th century project an excellent
protrayal of the 19th century. X

While there are many small 1S5th century cross-road villages or
srall mill towns in New Jersey, few are in such an undisturbed
environment as that of Cranbury. .

Most of the buildings in Cranbury can be portrayed as vernacu-
lar Greek Revival or Victorian although many exhibit features which
sppear to have been influenced, if not directed, by the masters.
Federal, Greek Revival, Italianate, and Queen Anne styles and
details are all in evidence throughout the town - albeit sometimes

.in awkward dimensions.- ' :

Rather than just reflecting the quality of an architect/
builder, however, Cranbury -embodies the hopes and aspirations of the
nation in the mid-19th century. Optimism, faith, and reasoned
growth are part of what Cranbury represented and continuec to
represent. :

It is this assemblage of buildings - historically and archi-
tecturally - which ma-es Cranbury an attractive entity unique from
~any other contemporary villages. It .s this identity which sets
Cranbury aside from its nearby surroundings of look-alike suburbs
aq?lmodern commercial developments creating a significant historical
village.

hArchitecture

The architectural styles in Cranbury range from the Federal
period to the 20th century bungalow. Primarily vernacular in design
the buildings nonetheless project an aesthetic appearance and many
fine details.

‘o
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About ten years later Cranbury is described thusly: . "The
village is principally built on a single street and contains two
Presbyterian churches, two academies, 73 dwellings and about 600
inhabitants.®™ (Barber and Howe. Historical Collections of New

Jersey. 1844, p. 319.)

Today there are some 218 major buildings in the Cranbury
Historic District, Less than 20% of these structures were built
after the 1930's. Twenty-one houses were constructed around the
beginning of the 19th century, 87 in the mid-19th century, 21 in the .
late 19th century, and 49 in the early 20th century. The major -
period of construction in Cranbury was from 1840 to the 1880's.
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Significance (continued)

The Pederal style buildings in Cranbury are best identified by
the elliptical doorway motif. The Brainerd Institute, 53 and 85
North Main and 47 South Main Streets all exhibit this feature in
Cranbury and date from the mid-19th century - quite late for Pederal
details. Earlier buildings such as the Cranbury Inn, 68 North Main
Street, 16 and 49 South Main Street do not have this feature al-
though their form and interior detailing does suggest the Federal
period. The house at 43 South Main Street has an early Federal
form, but also features an added pattern-book Greek Revival entrance
portico. )

The Greek Revival building is the most predominant form in
Cranbury. Fine examples such as the First Presbyterian Church, 10
Park Place, 26 Maplewood Avenue, and 11 North Main Street rival the
best Greek Revival buildings in New Jersey. Numerous other mid-i19th

'ltntury dwellings in Cranbury represent the vernacular of the Greek

vival style at its best. The building as constructed in Cranbury
was a five bay, center hall building or a small three bay, side hall
unit. The side and fanlight doorways are typical as are the simple
‘paneled frieze and corner boards. Examples are at 6 Westminister
Place and 5 South Main Street. Other Greek Revival buildings in
Cranbury are at 1-5 Scott Avenue; 11,31,42, and 54 North Main and
12,16,41, and 57 South Main.

Carpenter Gothic features are not uncommon in Cranbury, but
generally are incorporated in buildings with other features. Two of

the clesrest Victorian Gothic buildings are at 5 Prospect and 10
South Main Streets.

The Italianate form i3 represented by 1 Prospect Street, 39
South Main Street, 95 North Main Street, and the S. Jernee House at
9 Park Place. ‘

Conservative building forms held true in Cranbury for nearly
half a century and as a result fanciful later Victorian buildings
are uncommon in the village. Two exceptions are the Queen Anne
style buildings erected for the Silvers in the 1880's. The one is
at | North Main and the other at 46 North Main. A simpler example
of the style is the house at 101 North Main Street. Colonial

Revival buildings are represented by 40 South Main Street and the
w Cranbury Schoolhouse.
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Significance (continued)

Several 20th century bungalows are also in the district. Two
particularly fine examples are side by side at 86 and 88 North Main
Street and were built in the 1920's. ‘

In total, Cranbury has a fine collection of architecturally
significant buildings. Not all of them have been pinpointed in this
essay which singles out the finest and the most representative. The
major visual impact of the Cranbury Districe, however, is its
overall ambiance. Although differences in styles and details are
common from building to building the overall scale and massing of -
the structures are uniform providing aesthetic streetscapes through-
out the village. : ’

Commerce
Main Street in Cranbury has functioned as the ‘tommercial center
the village from the 19th century. Many of the mid and late 19th
century buildings are still extant, although the integrity of some
have been jeopardized over recent years with unsympathetic altera-
tions to the first floor store front facades. Examples of these
commercial buildings include 60 North Main Street, 11 North Main
Street, 13 North Main Street, 31 North Main Street, 33 North Main,
$S North Main, Wayfarer's Inn at 77 and 79 North Main Street, and 14
South Main Street, in addition to the 18th - 19th century Cranbury
inn, a functioning inn and tavern for nearly two hundred years.

Originally owned by Colonel Richard Hardley of the New Jersey
Militia in 1800, Peter Perrine built a house next to the tavern.
This house was converted into the U.S. Hotel in 1808 by Captain
Timothy Horner. Around 1920 the name became the Cranbury Inn.

The First National Bank was organized in April 1884 and
occupied its present building since 1898. The Cranbury Savings and
Loan Association was founded in 1921, .

The first newspaper in Cranbury was the Cranbury News by R. M.
Stults on January 5, 1882. The Cranbury Press established in 1885
was founded by George W. Burroughs and is located at 13 North Main
Street.
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Significance (continued)

The firehouse is built on the property where the old grist
mill and a saw mill stood. 1In 1948 the site next to the brook
became the Memorial Park.Cranbury has another new park off Maplewood
Avenue,

Over the years Cranbury has had its share of blacksmiths,

wheelwrights, and carriage manufacturers; grocery shops, bakeries,

shoe and boot shop of Daniel Hoagland, and the Spice Mill estab-

lished in 1865 by John S. Davison and later known as the J. S.

Silvers Bros. and Co. which was destroyed by fire.

Military
GEORGE WASHINGTON IN CRANBURY

Q Before the Battle of Monmouth, General LaFayette wrote to

eneral Washington on June 25, 1778: “"The detachment is in a wood
covered by Cranberry Creek, and I believe extremely safe.” A letter
from Colonel Alexander Hamilton which LaFayette enclosed in the
foargoing. was dated "Doctor Stile's House, Cranberry Town 9
o'clock”®

Early the following morning LaFayette wrote again to General
Washington before proceeding. During the day General wWashington
came to Cranbury where he wrote to LaFayette and General Lee. The
intense heat of the weather from whch the troops were suffering and
a storm that came on prevented General Washington from advancing
beyond Cranbury on June 26, 1778.

Religion °

With the Dutch, -the Friends, and French Huguenots in this
section, the Presbyterians made an agreement to join the church of
England persuasion, and a building was erected and used for services

by the various groups. In 1738, the Presbyterians sold their
interest in the building.

4
if
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Sicnificance (continued) ' -

In July 1739 James Rochead conveyed to Coert Van Voorhees and
Thomas Story a lot adjoining the mill property "to be the use of the
Elders and Deacons of the Presbyterian Church of Cranbury for
erecting a house of worship.*®

A church was erected in 1740. A new building was built in 1788
on the site of the present church which was built in 1839 and
enlarged in 1859, The first chapel was built in 1878 and brought to
its present state in 1960.

The Second Presbyterian Church of Cranbu:y was founded in 1838,
The two churches were joined in 1935. The Second Church building
was razed and a monument erected on the site. 1Its Westminster
Cemetery countinues to be the burying ground for many families.

The lake, and cemetery adjoining the First Church have been
amed for David Brainerd who preached to the Indians in or near
Cranbury during the summer of 1745.

The cornerstone of the present Methodist Church was laid in
1848. Prior to that occasional services were held froa 1817 to 1848
in private homes.
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